
 
PRELIMINARY AGENDA  

REGULAR SESSION 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

NORTH PLAINS SENIOR CENTER 
31450 NW Commercial 

Monday, July 15, 2013 – 7:00 P.M. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA:  (The items on the Consent Agenda are normally 

considered in a single motion. Any item may be removed for separate 
consideration upon request by any member of the Council.) 

 
A. Approval of regular session agenda 

B. Approval of minutes of 07/1/2013 Council meeting 

5.  PUBLIC COMMENT: (Persons wishing to speak on matters not on the agenda may 
be recognized at this time.  Speakers must complete a “Public Comment 
Registration form” on the information table and return it to the City Recorder.  You 
are not required to give your address when speaking to the City Council, only your 
name.  Presentations are limited to five minutes.)   

 
6. PRESENTATION: 

A. Senator Bruce Starr presenting a legislative wrap-up 
B. Fill-the-Boot Proclamation: Muscular Dystrophy Association—Wally David, Fill-

the-Boot Coordinator 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING: 

None Scheduled 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS: 
A. Council to proclaim Tuesday, August 6, 2013 as National Night Out  
B. Council to review the June Check Register 
C. Council to discuss renewing of contract with City Manager 

 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

None Scheduled 
 
10. ORDINANCES: 
  
 FIRST READING:   

None Scheduled. 

______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 1 of 27



 
SECOND READING: 
None Scheduled.  

 
11. STAFF REPORTS 
  

Staff reports will be provided by the City Manager, Public Works Director, Police 
Chief, and Library Director 

 
12. COUNCIL REPORTS 

 
A. Council reports will be provided by the Mayor and City Councilors on meetings 

attended and other items. 
 
B. August 2013 Council Calendar 
 

13. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 Farmer’s Market: Saturdays from 9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. 
 Summer Fest and Garlic Out West Festival August 9-10-11, 2013 
 Concerts in the Park—Friday evenings at 6:30 during August 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT: (The August 5, 2013 meeting has been cancelled) 
 

***** 
North Plains City Council meetings are accessible for disabled individuals.  The City will 
also endeavor to provide services for persons with impaired hearing or vision and other 
services, if requested, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  To obtain services, please 
call City Hall at (503) 647-5555  

***** 
 
City Council Meetings are normally scheduled to be held at the North Plains Senior Center. 
They will be held at 31450 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon, on the following 

dates at 7:00 p.m.: 
 

Monday, August 19, 2013 Monday, September 3, 2013 Monday, September 16, 2013 

______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 2 of 27



CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES REGULAR SESSION 

NORTH PLAINS SENIOR CENTER 
31450 NW Commercial  

Monday, July 1, 2013 7:00 P.M. 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor David Hatcher called the meeting to order at 7:09 p.m. 
  
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: None as flag salute was already conducted during URA 

Board Meeting. 
 
3. ROLL CALL: Mayor David Hatcher; Council President Teri Lenahan; Councilors: 

Michael Demagalski, Charlynn Newton, and Robert Kindel, Jr. 
 
Absent excused: Glen Warren, Michael Broome 
 
Staff present: City Manager Martha DeBry, Chief of Police Bill Snyder, Library Director 
Debbie Brodie, Account Clerk Margaret Reh 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

A. Approval of regular session agenda 

B. Approval of minutes of 06/17/2013 Council meeting 

Motion by Kindel. Seconded by Demagalski to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  
The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
Former Mayor Henry Drexel passed away last Wednesday and Hatcher had asked Kindel to 
share a few words about Hank. 
 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT:  

Cindy Sagar, 10365 NW 317th, addressed Council regarding congestion and parking 
issues at the Corner of 317th and Pacific Streets. This is the area surrounding the 
ingress and egress at the Oak Meadows Neighborhood. With the increased 
development in the area, they are seeing a large increase in traffic. Individuals are 
parking vehicles on Pacific Street which is causing poor visibility clearance.  Sagar 
wanted to alert the Council of the potential hazards and hoping to get some help in 
addressing this issue. 

 
6. PRESENTATION: 

None Scheduled 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING: 
 None Scheduled 
 

______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 3 of 27



8. NEW BUSINESS: 
A. Council to consider Resolution No. 1793 appointing Stephanie Farris to the North 

Plains Public Library Board of Directors. 
 

The North Plains Library Board had conducted interviews at the June Library Board Meeting. 
The Board is recommending Council to appoint Stephanie Farris. Council asked Farris, who 
was in attendance, a few questions regarding her desire to be on the Library Board. 
 
Kindel thanked her for applying. 
 
Motion by Demagalski. Seconded by Lenahan to approve Resolution No.1793 appointing 
Stephanie Farris to the North Plains Public Library Board of Directors.  The motion was 
approved unanimously. 
  

B. Council to consider Resolution No. 1794 which appoints members to the North 
Plains Parks Board. 

 
Council recently adopted Municipal Code section 1.40 which provides that Council can appoint 
a Parks Board which will assist in the oversight of parks and recreation programs in North 
Plains. 
 
The City has received applications from residents Brandon Willson and Hildegard Miles; 
Planning Commission Doug Nunnenkamp and Planning Commission Heather LaBonte for 
appointment to the Board. 
 
Motion by Demagalski. Seconded by Kindel to approve Resolution No.1794 appointing 
members to the North Plains Parks Board with a minor change to the wording on the 
Resolution.  The Resolution should read “Council may appoint up to two members of the City 
Council to sit as a voting member of the Parks Board” instead on “appoint one Councilor.” The 
motion was approved unanimously. 
 

C. Council to consider Resolution No. 1795 approving the waiver of fees and closure of 
Main Street between Main and Kaybern for Senior Center fundraiser sponsored by 
Last Waterin’ Hole. 

 
For the past eight years a “Poker Run” has been held to benefit the North Plains Senior 
Center.  Last year the Waterin’ Hole hosted the event which raised over $3,000 for the Center 
that helps the North Plains community by providing meals on wheels, low-cost lunches, and a 
food pantry. 
 
The Council is being asked to waive fees associated with the July 20th fundraising event 
sponsored by the Last Waterin’ Hole, and authorizing the street closure and temporary liquor 
license approval recommendation to the OLCC. 
 

______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 4 of 27



Motion by Kindel. Seconded by Demagalski to approve Resolution No.1795 approving the 
waiver of fees and closure of Main Street between Main and Kaybern for Senior Center 
fundraiser sponsored by Last Waterin’ Hole. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
 

D. Council to consider Resolution No. 1796 approving the lease purchase of a new 
police vehicle and authorizing the City Manager to execute a lease agreement 
related to the lease purchase at a vehicle cost not to exceed $34,533.90 

 
DeBry presented the staff report. The 2013-14 budget includes the funds for the purchase of a 
full-fitted police car.  This resolution is authorizing the City Manager to enter into an agreement 
to lease purchase a new police vehicle.  Having a fleet of new vehicles has successfully 
reduced the departments repair costs. 
 
Discussion by Council ensued.  DeBry reiterated to Council that issuing authorization to 
purchase had to happen before the purchase could be made.  Staff doesn’t obtain a lease 
agreement before the purchase is made.  A bill of sale is received and it will be months later 
after the vehicle is built to our specification and when we take ownership of the vehicles.  
 
Motion by Demagalski. Seconded by Kindel to approve Resolution No.1796 approving the 
lease purchase of a new police vehicle and authorizing the City Manager to execute a lease 
agreement related to the lease purchase at a vehicle cost not to exceed $34,533.90. The 
motion was approved unanimously. 
 

E. Council to discuss August City Council meeting dates. Generally only one meeting is 
held in August. 

 
Hatcher stated that Council usually take a day off in August and wanted a consensus from 
Council if that is what they wanted to do and which meeting did they want to cancel.  Council 
decided there will be no meeting August 5, 2013. 

 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 
10. ORDINANCES: 
  
 FIRST READING:   

A. None Scheduled. 
 

SECOND READING: 
B. None Scheduled 

 
11. STAFF REPORTS 
  
DeBry gave a report on the status of preparations for the 4th of July Celebration. 
 

______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 5 of 27



DeBry reported staff received the paperwork for new subdivision on Pacific Avenue—near the 
Cottage Point at the end of Claxtar.  This is a one acre parcel of land that will be a seven lot 
subdivision. 
 
DeBry reported for Boyles that the Claxtar Street project is moving along well. 
 
Snyder submitted his report in writing to the Council. He also reported that J.Peterson is in full 
capacity in the new position. 
 
The Construction Zone grant has been extended by the State for the Overpass project.  The 
State has been very pleased with the job the North Plains Police have been doing and 
increased the hours with this grant. 
 
Brodie thanked the Council for approving the appointment of Stephanie Farris. 
 
Brodie reported the sign-ups for the Summer Reading Program are going very well this year. 
The Library will have a table set up on the 4th of July in front of the building with the Spin-and-
Win Spinner so children can sign up and spin for prizes at the same time. 
 
Brodie will be attending the July 10, 2013 Knights of Pythias meeting.  The Knights want to 
give the library $700.00 toward the purchase of e-readers. 
 
Hatcher asked Doug Nunnenkamp, who was in attendance, if he would update the Council on 
the Farmer’s Market.  Nunnenkamp stated there have been four to six vendors at the Market. 
Berries are what are in season now. There will be more vendors later in the season as more 
product is harvested.  He shared that there are about 60 children who have signed up to be 
“Sprouts”.  The “Sprouts” will be getting involved in the various events in the community.  
 
Nunnenkamp also informed Council that the Farm Truck show is being reduced from what they 
were initially planning.  They will not be needing to shut down Commercial Street. They will 
incorporate the farm trucks with the vendors on 314th with the Farmer’s Market. 
 
12. COUNCIL REPORTS 

 
The July 2013 Council Calendar was distributed in the packets for Council to review. 
 
Kindel stated he was watching the trestle work going in at the construction site at the Hwy 26 
overpass project. He was asked about the footbridge that is going in under the bridge.  Hatcher 
stated that ODOT is constructing the trail beneath the bridge.  There are two pieces we are 
working on: 1) need to get the money finalized and 2) we need to get the easement rights. 
Hatcher stated DeBry is working on the easement rights.  
 
Newton reported the Senior Center has requested assistance from Public Works on a few 
items—including some water seepage problems.  

 
13. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 

______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 6 of 27



 July 4th Celebration: 07/04/13 Commercial Street from Main to 311th 

 Farmer’s Market: Saturdays from 9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. 
 
14. ADJOURNMENT:  Mayor Hatcher adjourned the meeting to a work session at 7:48 

p.m. 
 

 
 
_______________________________   
David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
 
_______________________________ Date approved __________________ 
Margaret L. Reh, Deputy Recorder 

 

______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 7 of 27



City of North Plains 
Oregon 

Proclamation 
Muscular Dystrophy Association 2013 

Fill-the-Boot 
 

WHEREAS, Washington County Fire District 2 has been working with the Muscular 

Dystrophy Association in their fight against neuromuscular disease; and 

 

WHEREAS, “Fill-the-Boot” is an opportunity for Oregon fire fighters to ask community 

members to drop donations into their fire boots to help local families served by MDA in the 

state. This year marks the 59th anniversary of the partnership between firefighters and MDA in 

the fight against muscle wasting diseases; and 

 

WHEREAS, Washington County Fire District 2 has spent many hours collecting money 

on the streets for this campaign; and 

 

WHEREAS, firefighters, locally and nationally, are the largest contributors to the MDA. 

Washington County Fire District 2 Firefighters collected $5,521.86 in 2012 to help in the fight 

against 43 different types of neuromuscular diseases. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, David Hatcher, by virtue of the authority vested in me as the 

Mayor of the City of North Plains, do hereby proclaim, September 7 & 8, 2013 as: 

 

Washington County Fire District 2 “Fill-the-Boot” Days for the City of North Plains. 

 

 

 

Given unto my hand this 15th day of July, 2013. 

 

Signed, 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

David Hatcher 

Mayor 

Agenda Item No: 6B 

______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 8 of 27



City of North Plains 
Oregon 

Proclamation 
National Night Out 2013 

 

WHEREAS, the National Association of Town Watch is sponsors a 

nationwide crime, drug and violence prevention program on August 6, 2013 entitled 

National Night Out; and 

WHEREAS, the North Plains Police Department, Washington County Sheriff 

and numerous local businesses are proudly supporting the community event; and 

WHEREAS, it is essential that all residents of the City of North Plains be 

aware of crime prevention programs and recognize the impact that their participation 

can have on reducing crime, drug use, and violence in our town; and 

WHEREAS, police-community partnerships, neighborhood safety, awareness 

and cooperation are important themes of the National Night Out program. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of the City of North Plains, 

Oregon do hereby proclaim August 6, 2013 is National Night Out and we encourage 

all residents to participate in the event by joining other community members at Jessie 

Mays Community Park, hosting block parties and making an effort to meet their 

neighbors. 

Given unto my hand this 15th day of July, 2013. 

 

 

______________________________________ 

David Hatcher 

Mayor 

Agenda Item No: 8A 

______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 9 of 27



______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 10 of 27

mreh
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item No: 8B



______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 11 of 27



______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 12 of 27



______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 13 of 27



______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 14 of 27



______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 15 of 27



______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 16 of 27



______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 17 of 27



______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 18 of 27



______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 19 of 27



______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 20 of 27



 

Agenda Item No. 8C 

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:   July 8, 2013 

To:  City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Review of City Manager Contract 

Request:  Council consider renewing the City Manager’s contract. 

Background:  Included in Council’s packet is a copy of the City Manager’s contract which 

expired on June 30, 2013.  At the June 17, 2013 meeting Council voted to increase the 
salary to $83,018 per year. 

The Mayor and City Manager have discussed some potential modifications for the 
contract including: 

 A change in administrative leave (IV.C) – Currently it is at 40 hours per year.  
Administrative leave is different from other leaves as the employee is not entitled to 
cash out any unused leave.  Vacation accrual for the City Manager is currently 96 
hours per year.  See Employee Handbook page 61: 
http://www.northplains.org/images/stories/media/Employee_Handbook_832011.pdf  

 A change in severance package if termination is for a reason other than cause.  
Currently the contract provides up to 4 months’ salary. 

 The term of the contract should be determined.  Typical terms are yearly, 
biannually, or automatic year-to-year renewal until revised. 

Fiscal Impact:  Administrative leave does not have a direct fiscal impact as it is time off 
for a salaried position.  The severance package would only have a budgetary impact if 
termination occurs for a reason other than cause. 
 
Recommendation: Council discuss proposed changes for the City Manager’s contract. 

______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 21 of 27

http://www.northplains.org/images/stories/media/Employee_Handbook_832011.pdf


______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 22 of 27



______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 23 of 27



______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 24 of 27



______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 25 of 27



______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 26 of 27



August 2013 Council Calendar 
 
 

Meeting Primary Alternate Note Date 

Concerts in the Park   6:30 Corey Mitchell Project 8/2 

North Plains Farmer’s Market   314th Street & Commercial 8/3 

City Council - CANCELLED 7:00 p.m. 8/5 

National Night Out   6:30 p.m. Jessie Mays Park 8/6 

Washington County Office of 
Community Development: Policy 
Advisory Board 

Kindel Demagalski 2nd Thursday @ 7 p.m. 8/8 

Summer Fest and Garlic Out West   Jessie Mays Community Park 8/9-8/11 

North Plains Farmer’s Market   314th Street & Commercial 8/10 

Washington County Coordinating 
Committee (WCCC) Hatcher DeBry 2nd Monday @  12 noon 8/12 

Planning Commission Broome  2nd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 8/14 

Concerts in the Park   6:30 Sambafeat 8/16 

North Plains Farmer’s Market   314th Street & Commercial 8/17 

Senior Center Dance   6:30 Jessie Mays Hall 8/17 

City Council 7:00 p.m. 8/19 

Library Board Demagalski  3rd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 8/21 

Concerts in the Park   6:30 Responsible Party 8/23 

North Plains Farmer’s Market   314th Street & Commercial 8/24 

Metro Policy Advisory Committee 
(MPAC) Hatcher Newton 4th Wednesday @ 5 p.m. 8/28 

Parks Board   4th Wednesday @ 6:30 p.m. 8/28 

Concerts in the Park   6:30 Garcia Birthday Band 8/30 

North Plains Farmer’s Market   314th Street & Commercial 8/31 

Metropolitan Area 
Communications Commission 
(MACC) 

Warren Lenahan   

Northwest Oregon Area 
Commission on Transportation 
(NWACT) 

Lenahan DeBry   

 

Agenda Item: 12B 

______________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, July 15, 2013 
Page 27 of 27


	4A 071513 Preliminary Agenda
	4A 070113 Minutes
	6B Proclamation MDA North Plains 7_122
	8A Proclamation National Night Out
	8B June Check Register-Auto Pay
	8B June Check Register-Manual Checks
	8C Martha DeBry-City Manager contract



